Our Ref: Your Ref: PJM/JAD/8021



11 November 2024

### THE LITTLE ROCK, ST FAGANS, CARDIFF, CF5 6DU

We attach our Application Form which must be completed in full by applicants and returned to us together with the supporting proof of identity and proof of address documents as set out in Section 3 of the Application Form. If a joint contract is proposed then all proposed contract-holders must each complete a separate Application Form in full. If a Guarantor is proposed then they should also fully complete a separate Application Form and submit this to us with their supporting proof of identity and proof of address documents.

Prospective contract-holders are advised to read the Welsh Government's publication "A Home in the Private Rented Sector – A Guide for Tenants" a copy of which is attached and which is available to download at https://www.rentsmart.gov.wales

#### **Viewing**

Viewing by applicants is by strict appointment with Cooke & Arkwright. To arrange an appointment please contact Paul Mantle on 07767 815434.

#### **Credit References**

Once you have returned the completed Application Form to us, Cooke & Arkwright will pass your details onto a third-party reference company. There is no charge to applicants relating to this.

#### **Guarantor Requirements**

It may not become apparent until your referencing has been completed that a Guarantor is required. Guarantors will need to fully complete the Application Form and provide supporting proof of identity and proof of address documents. There is no charge to the applicant or proposed guarantor relating to this.

The Guarantor should be aware that they shall be a jointly and severally liable with the contract-holder for the rent due and other sums payable and other obligations of the contract-holder in accordance with the Contract.

You may be asked to provide a Guarantor who will agree to pay your rent if you don't pay it.

You may be asked to provide a Guarantor if: you have poor or no credit history in the UK are a student or renting for the first time are unemployed or have a low income move to the UK from overseas

Guarantors are usually a relative or close friend of the contract-holder but they don't have to be. Guarantors must be over 18. Guarantors need to have a good credit history and appropriate income. Further details of the Guarantor's liabilities are contained in the example Standard Contract template which is available to be viewed at

https://www.coark.com/assets/downloads/Example Standard Contract.pdf

<u>Standard Contract</u> - Properties will be let under the terms of a Standard Contract. The initial term will be six months. Longer terms may be considered and should be discussed with us. The successful applicant(s) for a Contract will be required to sign the standard form of Contract which is based upon the Welsh Government's Model Written Statement for Periodic Standard Contracts and includes a written and photographic schedule of condition and contents (Inventory).

An example copy of our Standard Contract template is available on request and can be to viewed at <a href="https://www.coark.com/assets/downloads/Example Standard Contract.pdf">https://www.coark.com/assets/downloads/Example Standard Contract.pdf</a>

<u>Tenancy Deposit</u> - A tenancy deposit equivalent to one and a half months rental will be required to be paid by the applicant(s) on commencement of the Contract. This tenancy deposit will be repaid to the contract-holder on termination of the Contract providing that all the terms of the Contract have been complied with and that the property is left in a satisfactory condition. Cooke & Arkwright is a member of The Dispute Service Limited and the tenancy deposit will be held in accordance with the Tenancy Deposit Scheme.

<u>Successful Applications</u> - On receipt of an acceptable credit reference we will contact you to discuss a date for the Contract to commence and we will prepare the Model Written Statement and a written and photographic schedule of condition and contents (Inventory) recording the condition of the property at the start of the Contract.

We will give you details of the payment which will need to be received by Cooke & Arkwright in cleared funds prior to commencement of the Contract. This will include:

- The first full month's rent in advance
- Any additional days rent (if the Contract does not commence on the first day of the month)
- Tenancy deposit one and a half times the monthly rent

We will let you have the relevant bank details if you wish to make payment by bank transfer, alternatively payment can be made by debit card over the phone. We will provide you with further details at the appropriate time.

During the term of the Contract, rental payments should be paid by Standing Order and we will provide you with the bank details for rental payments once the Contract has been set up. Any alternative means of payment will have to be agreed with the Landlord or Cooke & Arkwright.

We enclose our "Information for Residential Contract-Holders Including Fees Payable" sheet which sets out details of fees payable by contract-holders which can also be viewed at <a href="https://www.coark.com/assets/downloads/Example Fees Payable.pdf">https://www.coark.com/assets/downloads/Example Fees Payable.pdf</a>

Cooke & Arkwright aims to work to the highest service standards. However, in the unlikely event of you having any complaint, we have a formal Complaints Procedure in accordance with the RICS Rules and Procedures. A copy of our Complaints Handling Policy is available to view on our website at https://www.coark.com/about-us/







# A Home in the Private Rented Sector:

A Guide for Tenants in Wales

# **Contents**

Who is this guide for?	3
Before you start	4
Renting from a landlord or letting agent	5
Direct from a landlord	5
Through a letting agent	5
Looking for your new home	6
Questions to ask	6
When you've found a place	6
The occupation contract	6
If you have any concerns about the occupation contract or the condition of the property, seek advice before you sign.	8
Your landlord must provide you with	9
Living in your rented home	10
You must	10
You should also	10
Your landlord must	10
The landlord should also	11
At the end of the rental period	12
If you want to stay	12
If you or the landlord want to end the tenancy	12
If things go wrong	13
Further advice and guidance	14
Glossary	15

# Who is this guide for?

- This guide is important for anyone who is looking for a house or flat to rent, including students. Most of the contents also apply if you rent a room in a shared property but in certain cases, for example living in a house in multiple occupation, your rights and responsibilities will be different.
- 2. The guide does not cover lodgers or people with licences nor tenants where the property is not their main or only home.
- 3. If you rent a property, it's good to know the questions you should ask of your landlord and your rights and responsibilities as a tenant. This guide does just that. It will help you to create a positive relationship with your landlord but will also explain what to do and how to get advice and help if things go wrong.
- 4. Sometimes when you rent a home, people expect you to make a quick decision, or to sign documents before you have had a chance to think about them. Don't be rushed. Take a little time to read this guide and keep a copy to hand. It could help you to protect yourself from any problems that could occur.
- 5. The Renting Homes (Wales) Act 2016 uses the term **contract holder** for somebody renting property from a landlord or agent. **Contract holder** replaces the word **tenant**. However, for simplicity throughout this guide **tenant** will still be used.

2 3

**<sup>©</sup>GL** © Crown copyright 2023, Welsh Government, WG47688, Digital ISBN 978-1-83504-244-1 Mae'r ddogfen hon ar gael yn Gymraeg hefyd / This document is also available in Welsh Rydym yn croesawu gohebiaeth a galwadau ffôn yn Gymraeg / We welcome correspondence and telephone calls in Welsh

# Before you start

## What will renting a property cost you?

- 6. Think carefully about how much rent you can afford to pay and the need to pay for other property related expenses like Council Tax and insurance. About 30% of your take-home pay is the most that many people can generally afford, but this also depends on your other outgoings (for example, whether you have dependent children, or the costs of your energy bills). Advice on affordability is available from <a href="Shelter Cymru">Shelter Cymru</a>, and <a href="Citizens Advice Cymru">Citizens Advice Cymru</a>.
- 7. If you are on housing benefit or local housing allowance, you will need to check the rents in the area in which you want to live are affordable based on the amount of benefit you will receive. Further information can be found here: <u>Local Housing Allowance</u>.
- 8. If the rent for the property you want is more than your benefit entitlement, you should carefully consider whether you will be able to manage such additional rent payments. Your local authority may be able to provide further assistance. Further information can be found here: <a href="Local Authority Housing Directory">Local Authority Housing Directory</a> Rent Smart Wales. After you sign an occupation contract, you will be expected to find the money, and failing to pay your rent and going into arrears could result in eviction from the property.

#### How to find accommodation to rent

9. Decide on the area in which you wish to live. There are many ways of finding a suitable property. You could use a letting agent, contact your local authority housing options service, or look at advertisements in local newspapers or on the internet. The larger the area you are prepared to consider looking in, the better the chance of finding the right home. It is also worth shopping around and comparing fees and charges and asking views from former tenants, if possible, when considering prospective landlords or letting agents. Many letting agents hold lists of people wanting to rent property and you may wish to register your details with them as in some cases properties becoming available may not even be advertised.

# Have the required documents ready

10. Landlords and agents will wish to confirm your identity, and possibly your employment, immigration status and credit history. They may also require references. Some landlords might ask someone to guarantee your rent. If you don't have a guarantor, ask your local authority, Shelter Cymru or local Citizens Advice Bureau for advice.

# Renting from a landlord or letting agent

#### Direct from a landlord

11. By law, all private landlords in Wales must register with *Rent Smart Wales*, and if they manage their own properties they must also have a licence from *Rent Smart Wales*. The registration and licensing scheme has been introduced by the Welsh Government to help ensure good standards of management for private rented properties. You should ask the landlord if they are licenced when viewing a property. You can verify if the landlord is licensed, or the property you wish to rent is listed and the landlord is registered, via an on-line check on the website: www.rentsmart.gov.wales.

## Through a letting agent

- 12. Ask about the fees and costs you will be asked to pay and when you need to pay them. By law, a breakdown of all fees and costs should be provided in a property advert, in the agent's office or on their website, if they have one. All fees must be stated as being inclusive of Value Added Tax ("VAT"). This also includes any fees which may be charged as a result of late payment of rent. This requirement covers any property adverts an agent may produce.
- 13. Generally, at the start of a tenancy, you shouldn't be charged anything by your landlord or agent other than rent, a holding deposit (returnable provided you proceed and rent the property set at no more than 1 weeks' rent), or a tenancy deposit, returnable at the end of your tenancy provided that there is no damage to the property.
- 14. Ask if your agent is a member of an independent complaints scheme. Do they offer client money protection? Ask whether the agent is a member of a recognised industry agent organisation such as SafeAgent, ARLA PropertyMark, the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors (RICS) or the United Kingdom Association of Letting Agents (UKALA). This will ensure that the agent is part of a Client Money Protection (CMP) scheme which will offer financial protection should anything untoward happen to your money.
- 15. Ask whether the agent is a member of a redress scheme which can provide independent adjudication on any complaint you might have.
- 16. Make sure your agent is licensed with Rent Smart Wales. This is required by law in order to operate their business. Look for the Rent Smart Wales logo. It should be clearly visible to you at the agent's premises and on their website.

Rhentu Doeth Cymru Rent Smart Wales

Above all, be clear about what you will be asked to pay and who you are handing money over to and why.

f 4

Rent Smart Wales

A Home in the Private Rented Sector: A Guide for Tenants in Wales

# Looking for your new home

### Questions to ask

- 17. Deposit protection. You may be asked to pay a deposit to your landlord at the start of a tenancy as security for any rent arrears or damage to the property. This should be returned at the end of the tenancy if the accommodation has been left in good condition and there are no arrears. If the landlord asks for a deposit, check that it will be protected in a Government approved scheme. Some schemes will hold the money and some will insure it. This information is something you need to know. You may be able to access a bond or guarantee scheme through your local authority which will help you put the deposit together.
- 18. Holding Deposit. You may be asked to pay to a holding deposit to secure a property before entering the contract. Should a holding deposit be required it must:
  - be no more than one week's rent
  - be returned within seven days of the contract being entered into or the deadline for agreement (15 days after the deposit is paid)
  - be repaid in all circumstances unless:
    - it is to be applied towards the security deposit or the first month's rent
    - you have given false or misleading information
    - you have notified the landlord that you no longer wish to live in the property
    - you have failed to take reasonable steps to enter into an occupation contract.
- 19. How long is the tenancy for? Landlords will usually ask you to sign for an initial fixed term period of 6 or 12 months. If you want more security, you can ask for a longer fixed term (for example, 3 years) however, this may come with additional responsibilities for the duration of the period. Many landlords are happy to offer longer tenancies. Ask what happens if you wish to stay after the fixed term period is up; will they require you to sign for another fixed term or will the tenancy just move into a periodic tenancy, for example running from month to month. Ask whether this will involve additional costs. Remember, periodic tenancies can be ended much more easily by you but also by the landlord.
- 20. **Children, smoking and pets.** Check if there are any rules about them, as well as other things such as keeping a bike, refuse collection and recycling.
- 21. **Pets.** The landlord cannot unreasonably refuse a tenant from keeping a pet if requested. It is always worth enquiring whether pets would be accepted, and whether obtaining a pet insurance policy may help, or you may wish to consider providing pet references. Further information can be found here: Lets with Pets.
- 22. Check who is responsible for paying bills such as electricity, gas, water, and council tax. Will it be you or the landlord? Usually, the tenant pays the providers for these directly, but you need to find out.

- 23. Fixtures and fittings. In particular, any cooker, fridge, freezer etc. provided as part of the tenancy. Check that you are happy with them, as it may be more difficult to get them changed once you have moved in and signed your occupation contract.
- 24. Smoke alarms and carbon monoxide detectors. Check that these have been provided. If not, ask if they can be installed. It is now a legal requirement for your landlord to ensure that each storey of your property has at least one hard-wired and interlinked smoke alarm. Carbon monoxide monitors must be present in any room which has a gas, oil or solid fuel burning appliance installed.
- 25. If the building becomes unfit to live in. Check that the occupation contract excuses you from paying rent should the building become unfit to live in, for example, because of a fire or flood. Seek advice from Citizens Advice or Shelter Cymru.
- 26. If you are disabled, you may also wish to ask the landlord if they are prepared to make reasonable adaptations, or allow you to pursue funding to do so.
- 27. **EPC rating.** Properties require an Energy Performance Certificate (EPC) rating of at least an 'E' to be let (unless they are exempt). Any advertisements or information provided about the property must include the Energy Performance Indicator. Generally, properties with a lower EPC rating will be less affordable in terms of energy bills. The EPC should contain guidance on how to make the property more energy efficient.
- 28. **The Indicator,** which provides the energy and environmental performance of the property, can be found on the Certificate. You can also look up the EPC certificates for any property: Find an energy certificate GOV.UK (www.gov.uk).

# When you've found a place

- 29. Make sure you have a written occupation contract. Consider it carefully to understand your rights and responsibilities before you sign the contract.
- 30. When you enter a standard occupation contract (the most common type), you are entering into a contractual arrangement. This will give you some important rights but also some responsibilities which you will need to adhere to.

# The occupation contract

- 31. There must be a written occupation contract. It is a legal requirement for a tenant to be provided with a written occupation contract within 14 days of the start of the contract, but ideally, this should be provided at the very start of the tenancy.
- 32. A written occupation contract should be signed and dated by both the tenant and the landlord or agent. If the contract is issued electronically, some other method could be used, such as a digital signature, or agreement in writing. A copy should always be kept by the landlord and/or agent, and a copy should be kept by the tenant.

6

Rent Smart Wales

#### 33. An occupation contract should include:

- Guidance to the tenant on the rights to use of common parts or shared facilities, such as garages, parking spaces, or gardens.
- Details of any tenancy deposit required.
- The amount of rent to be paid and frequency of payments (monthly, weekly, etc.)
- A clear description of which party is responsible for paying:
  - Council Tax
  - utility bills
  - television licence
  - phone, broadband, televisions subscriptions, or any other payable media services
  - any other payments permitted by the Renting Homes (Fees etc.) (Wales) Act 2019, which are or may be liable to be paid by a tenant.
- How the tenancy can be terminated.

# If you have any concerns about the occupation contract or the condition of the property, seek advice before you sign

- 34. Agree an inventory (or check-in report) with your landlord. As an extra safeguard, it is a good idea to take photos. This will make it easier if there is a dispute about the deposit at the end of the tenancy. If you are happy with the inventory, sign it and keep a copy. You may also wish to consider making a list of items that you have noticed that need repairing prior to moving in or, during a reasonable time after taking up the tenancy. You may want to refer to the <u>guidance</u> on the Fitness for Human Habitation standards to assist you with this.
- 35. Remember to take meter readings when you move in. This will help make sure that you don't pay for the previous tenant's or landlord's bills if they owe money for gas or electricity.
- 36. Contact details. Make sure that you have the correct details for the landlord or agent, including a telephone number you can use in case of an emergency. You should find out who to tell if any repairs are needed and the process for reporting them.
- 37. Code of practice. Check that whoever is managing the property is licensed and is following the Code of Practice issued by Rent Smart Wales.

### Your landlord must provide you with

- 38. A gas safety certificate. The landlord must arrange for a gas safety inspection each year if there are gas appliances in the property. You must be provided with a copy of the inspection report.
- 39. An Electrical Installation Condition Report (EICR). This is a report produced following an inspection of the electrical installations in a property by a qualified person. This must be dated within the last 5 years, and subsequent inspections must be carried out at least every 5 years.
- 40. Deposit paperwork. If you have provided a deposit, the landlord must protect it in a Government approved scheme. By law, you must be given clear information within 30 days of paying it about how the deposit is being held, including where, and details on how to get your money back at the end of the tenancy. Keep this information safe as you may need to refer to it later.

8

Rent Smart Wales

# Living in your rented home

### You must ...

- 41. Pay the rent on time. If you don't, you could lose your home because you have broken your occupation contract. If you have problems in paying your rent, get some advice. It is advisable to set up a direct debit or standing order for rental payments with the landlord or agent rather than rely on cash collections. It is worth getting contents insurance to cover your possessions too, because the landlord's insurance usually won't cover your things, but you can ask whether it does. Your local authority, Citizen's Advice Cymru or Shelter Cymru (or NUS Wales, if you're a student) can provide further advice.
- 42. Look after the property. Get your landlord's permission before attempting repairs or decorating. Don't forget to maintain gardens if applicable, and to use recycling and refuse facilities.
- 43. Be considerate to your neighbours. You could be evicted for anti-social behaviour, such as playing excessively loud music, which causes a nuisance, or by breaking the law in other ways by what you do at the property. Do not allow your visitors to engage in anti-social behaviour either as you can still be held accountable for their actions.
- 44. **Not take in a lodger** or sub-let without checking whether you need permission from your landlord.
- 45. **Utilities.** If you are responsible for paying utilities, such as gas and electricity then you are entitled to change utility supplier.

#### You should also ...

- 46. **Make sure you know how** to operate the boiler and other appliances. You should also know where to find the water stop tap, the main electrical fuse box (and shut-off switch), gas shut-off valve and how to use any burglar alarm or any window and door locks.
- 47. **Test** your smoke alarms and carbon monoxide detectors at least once a month.
- 48. Report any need for repairs or maintenance to your landlord or agent. You might consider keeping a record of all contact with your landlord or letting agent about repairs, and who you spoke to. There could be a risk to your deposit if a minor repair turns into a major problem because you didn't report it.

### Your landlord must ...

- 49. Maintain the structure and exterior of the property.
- 50. Deal with any problems with the water/sewerage, electricity and gas supplies.

- 51. **Maintain** in good working order any appliances and furniture they have supplied. Ideally, they should arrange for portable appliance testing (PAT) of electrical items such as fridges or cookers which are fixtures/fittings of the property.
- 52. Carry out the repairs landlords are responsible for. If something is not working, report it to the landlord (or their agent) as soon as you can.
- 53. Arrange an annual gas safety check by a qualified gas safety engineer (where there are any gas appliances). Gas appliances and flues must be checked for safety within 12 months of being installed, and thereafter at least every 12 months by a qualified gas engineer. Full records must be kept for at least 2 years of the inspections of each appliance and flue. A copy of the safety certificate issued by the engineer must be given to each existing tenant within 28 days of the check being carried out.
- 54. Give at least 24 hours' notice of visits when they need access to your home, for example for repairs. Your landlord or letting agent cannot walk into your home whenever they like, unless arrangements were agreed otherwise in the occupation contract, or in the case of an emergency. You should check the occupation contract for any such clauses.
- 55. Be registered with Rent Smart Wales and have a personal and property licence if necessary.
- 56. Only charge the tenant what they pay for utilities if the landlord pays the bills.

#### The landlord should also ...

57. Insure the building to cover the cost of any damage from flood or fire.

A Home in the Private Rented Sector: A Guide for Tenants in Wales

# At the end of the rental period

### If you want to stay

If you wish to extend your tenancy, there are a number of important issues to consider.

- 58. Do you want to sign up to a new fixed term? If not, you will be on a 'rolling periodic tenancy'. This means that you can carry on as before but with no fixed term.

  On a periodic contract, you can usually leave after giving one months' notice, or your landlord can end the contract, without giving a reason with six months' notice.
- 59. Your landlord may want to increase your rent. Your landlord can increase your rent as set out in your occupation contract, or by following a procedure set out in law. Your landlord must serve a 2-month notice of a rent increase and they can only serve one notice in any 12-month period.

# If you or the landlord want to end the tenancy

There are things that both landlords and tenants must do at the end of a tenancy:

- 60. **Giving notice.** By law, landlords and agents must give you proper written notice if they want you to leave. Normally, any fixed period of the tenancy must be allowed to expire, and they must have given at least six months' notice. Your occupation contract should say how much notice you must give to the landlord or agent if you want to leave the property one months' notice is typical, but you can give more notice if you want.
- 61. Breaches of the occupation contract can allow the landlord to end your tenancy early, possession can then only be granted through the courts, and this can involve costs.
- 62. If the landlord issues notice for you to leave the property then you can contact your local authority, Shelter Cymru, Welsh Tenants or Citizens Advice Cymru for advice.
- 63. Return of your deposit. You should know who and how an inspection is to be undertaken when ending the tenancy. Try to be present when the property is inspected. By doing this, you will be able to check whether any of the tenancy deposit should be deducted to cover damage or cleaning costs (a 'check out inventory'). Pictures taken when you moved in can be helpful in resolving any disputes about deductions. If you do not agree with proposed deductions, contact the deposit protection scheme in which your deposit is protected. It is also useful to take meter readings when you hand keys over. If dealing with a landlord or an agent, it is useful to agree who will provide you with a reference.
- 64. **Rent.** Make sure your rent payments are up to date. Do not keep back rent because you think it will be taken out of the deposit.
- 65. **Bills.** Do not leave bills unpaid. This might have an impact on the reference your landlord or agent is prepared to provide for you to rent another property. It could also affect your credit rating.
- 66. Leave the property in a clean and tidy state. Remove all your possessions, clean the house, return all keys and give a forwarding address. If appropriate, pay attention to the garden as well as the interior of the property. Check you haven't left anything behind.

# If things go wrong

There are often legal protections in place for the most common problems that you might experience during a tenancy. The following organisations will be able to help:

- 67. If you are having financial problems, or are falling into rent arrears, speak to your landlord or agent as they are likely to be more sympathetic if you talk to them early on about any difficulties. If you are having problems with your agent and they are part of a redress scheme they will have a written customer complaints procedure which you can use to seek resolution of any issue. If you are not satisfied with the outcome of the in-house procedure, you can refer the matter to the redress scheme for adjudication. If you need further advice, contact your local authority housing options team, Citizens Advice Cymru, Shelter Cymru or other support agency as soon as possible.
- 68. If the property is in an unsafe condition and your landlord won't repair it, contact your local authority environmental health or trading standards department. They have powers to make landlords deal with serious health and safety hazards, including prosecution in the most serious of cases.
- 69. Unannounced visits and/or harassment from your landlord or agent, contact your local authority, or in serious cases contact the police on 101. If you think you are under immediate threat dial 999.
- 70. If you are being **forced out illegally, contact the police**. If your landlord wants you to leave the property, they must notify you in writing, with the **right amount of notice** you can only be legally removed from the property if the landlord gets a court order.
- 71. If you feel you are being **discriminated against**. Open Doors have produced two free guides for tenants aimed at reducing discrimination and mistreatment in the Private Rented Sector. You can read more information here <u>Challenging Discrimination</u> in the Private Rented Sector.
- 72. Concerned about finding another place to live? Contact the Housing Department of your local authority. Shelter Cymru can also offer advice and support.
- 73. Depending on your circumstances your local authority may have a legal duty to help you find alternative accommodation and, even if not, will be able to give you advice on how to remain in the tenancy if you wish to do so. In most cases, the local authority should not wait until you are evicted before taking action to help you. You are legally defined as homeless if it is likely you will become homeless in the next 56 days.

# Further advice and guidance

- 74. Advice and guidance is available from the following organisations:
  - Local Authorities
  - Shelter Cymru
  - Citizens Advice Cymru.

### Agent organisations:

- Property Mark
- RICS
- UKALA
- Safeagent.

#### If you are a student:

- National Union of Students Wales; and/or
- your University Accommodation Office.

# **Glossary**

# Code of practice

The rules and recommendations that landlords and letting agents have to abide by if they wish to be licensed.

# Government approved tenancy deposit protection scheme

An approved scheme for protecting tenancy deposits for the purposes of safeguarding deposits paid in connection with tenancies.

### **Houses in Multiple Occupation**

The living accommodation is occupied by three or more people who do not form a single household (i.e. not closely related or married/partners).

### Inventory

A detailed list of articles, goods or property contained within the property you wish to let.

## **Occupation Contract**

An **occupation contract** is a written **contract** between you and your landlord. The **occupation contract** gives certain rights to both you and your landlord, for example, your right to occupy the accommodation and the landlord's right to receive rent for letting the accommodation.

# People with licences

Someone who rents their home under the terms of a licence to occupy the accommodation, such as a lodger, or a short-term "holiday" let. This gives less protection from eviction than a tenancy.

# Rolling periodic tenancy

A periodic tenancy is a tenancy which runs from month to month, or less commonly from week to week. Some run from quarter to quarter or even year to year, but the vast majority run from month to month.

### Sub-let

Sub-letting happens when an existing tenant lets all or part of their home to someone else who is known as a sub-tenant. Many tenants need permission before they can sub-let.

# INFORMATION FOR RESIDENTIAL CONTRACT-HOLDERS INCLUDING FEES PAYABLE



Prospective contract-holders are advised to read the Welsh Government's publication "A Home in the Private Rented Sector – A Guide for Tenants" which is available at www.rentsmart.gov.wales Cooke & Arkwright can provide a paper copy on request.

**Credit Reference Searches** 

There is no cost to contract-holders or guarantors for credit referencing which is carried out prior to commencement of the Contract at the landlord's cost.

Rent:

The contract-holder is responsible for payment of the rent as agreed in the Contract, monthly in advance from and including the commencement date of the Contract. Rent shall continue to be paid until and including the termination date.

Prior to commencement of the Contract the contract-holder is required to pay the first month's rent in full. If the Contract commences during the month (not on the first day of the month) then an additional apportioned amount calculated on a daily basis will be required to be paid in addition.

**Interest Rate:** 

To pay interest on any payment of rent not made within 14 days from the date upon which it fell due as set out in the Contract. Interest is payable from the fifteenth day after which the rent was due until the date on which the rent is actually paid. Interest will be payable at 3% above the base rate of The Bank of England

**Security Deposit (Tenancy Deposit):** 

A tenancy deposit, usually one and a half times the monthly rent, is to be paid by the contract-holder prior to commencement of the Contract and moving in. Tenancy deposits are held by Cooke & Arkwright as stakeholder in accordance with the rules of The Dispute Service ('TDS') which runs the Tenancy Deposit Scheme.

**Holdings Deposit:** 

Cooke & Arkwright do not charge holding deposits.

**Utilities, Services and Council Tax:** 

From and including the commencement date of the Contract and until and including the termination date, the contract-holder is responsible for all charges incurred for gas, electricity, water, Council Tax as well at TV Licence, telephone and other communication services, for example broadband.

# INFORMATION FOR RESIDENTIAL CONTRACT-HOLDERS INCLUDING FEES PAYABLE



#### **Default Payments:**

Default payments may be charged for the following:

#### Missed appointments

For example, a landlord arranging with a contract-holder for a contractor to carry out remedial work at a dwelling, and a contract-holder subsequently refusing entry, or not being home to allow entry, resulting in charges to the landlord.

### Avoidable or Purposeful Damage to dwelling

For example the cost of any repairs of any mechanical and electrical appliances belonging to the landlord, or the unblocking of drains, gutters, downpipes, sinks, toilets, or waste pipes arising from misuse or negligence by the contract-holder, his family, or visitors;

#### Replacement Keys/Locks

For example the loss of keys by the contract-holder requiring a landlord to arrange for the cutting of new keys and delivery of those keys to the contract-holder, or the replacement of locks where spare keys are not available.

#### • Emergency/Out of Hours Call-out Fees

For example fees incurred as a result of a landlord arranging for someone to attend the dwelling at the request of a contract-holder, such as a locksmith or an emergency glazier at the early hours of the morning, when the problem had been caused by the contract-holder in the first place, such as a window broken on purpose, or keys locked inside a house.

### • End of Contract

To pay damages in an amount equal to the rent if the dwelling is incapable of being re-let or of beneficial use to the landlord because the contract-holder has left substantial goods in the dwelling, until such goods have been removed from the dwelling.

#### Recovery of Rent Arrears

To pay the landlord, or the Agent all costs and expenses incurred by the landlord in:

- (a) recovering or attempting to recover any rent or other monies in arrears;
- (b) the enforcement of any obligation of the contractholder under the Contract;

# INFORMATION FOR RESIDENTIAL CONTRACT-HOLDERS INCLUDING FEES PAYABLE



Default Payments: (Continued)

- (c) the service of any Notice relating to any major breach of the Contract whether or not court proceedings are brought;
- (d) the service of any Notice requiring possession when the contract-holder has not complied with the conditions of the Notice;
- (e) the failure of the contract-holder to comply with any obligations under the Contract,
- (f) any other costs or expenses arising from a breach of the Contract by the contract-holder.

All costs incurred by the landlord for default payments as listed above will be re-charged to the contract-holder at the cost incurred by the landlord. Cooke & Arkwright do not charge an administration fee to the contract-holder. These costs will be payable by the contract-holder on each and every occurrence of the default.

Cooke & Arkwright is a trading name of Cooke & Arkwright Limited. Registered in England and Wales No: 2618062. Registered Office: 7/8 Windsor Place, Cardiff, CF10 3SX

Cooke & Arkwright are Licenced by Rent Smart Wales under Licence No #LR-82009-51295.

Cooke & Arkwright is a Member of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors.

Cooke & Arkwright is a Member of The Property Redress Scheme.

Cooke & Arkwright is a Member of The Tenancy Deposit Scheme.

